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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
The Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Los Angeles
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 55 of November 18, 2014
500 West Temple Street ) Lz
Los Angeles, California 90012 SACH A HAMA
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dear Supervisors:

PARTICIPATION IN THE
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA STORMWATER MONITORING COALITIONS COOPERATIVE
AGREEMENT AND RESEARCH IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENTS
(ALL SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS)

(3 VOTES)

SUBJECT

This action is to authorize the Chief Engineer of the Los Angeles County Flood Control District or her
designee to enter into a Cooperative Agreement to continue its participation in the Southern
California Stormwater Monitoring Coalition and its Stormwater Research Needs Program and enter
into subsequent Research Implementation Agreements to fund research studies that cannot be
accommodated by the Cooperative Agreement and authorize the Director of Public Works or her
designee to enter into Research Implementation Agreements, on behalf of the County of Los
Angeles, with parties to the aforementioned Cooperative Agreement, as well as other entities, to fund
research studies that are not part of the Collaborative Agreement and are of particular benefit to the
County. The estimated total cost of these actions shall not exceed $800,000 for the Los Angeles
County Flood Control District nor $300,000 for the County of Los Angeles.

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD ACTING AS THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE LOS
ANGELES COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT:

1. Find that the proposed project in the recommendations below is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act for the reasons stated in this letter and in the record of the project.

2. Authorize the Chief Engineer of the Los Angeles County Flood Control District or her designee to
enter into a Cooperative Agreement to continue its participation in the Southern California


amedina
Regular Adopt Stamp

amedina
Typewritten Text
55    of    November 18, 2014

amedina
Typewritten Text


The Honorable Board of Supervisors
11/18/2014
Page 2

Stormwater Monitoring Coalition and its Stormwater Research Needs Program through June 30,
2019, and approve associated annual contributions not to exceed $100,000.

3. Authorize the Chief Engineer of the Los Angeles County Flood Control District or her designee to
enter into subsequent Research Implementation Agreements by June 30, 2019, for a total amount
not to exceed $300,000, with parties to the aforementioned Cooperative Agreement, as well as other
entities, to fund research studies that cannot be accommodated by the annual contributions of the
Cooperative Agreement. Authorization will be limited to special studies that are related to regulatory
requirements and/or designed to obtain reasonable water quality standards.

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD ACTING AS THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES:

1. Find that the proposed project in the recommendations below is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act for the reasons stated in this letter and in the record of the project.

2. Authorize the Director of Public Works or her designee to enter into Research Implementation
Agreements by June 30, 2019, on behalf of the County of Los Angeles, with parties to the
aforementioned Cooperative Agreement, as well as other entities, for a total amount not to exceed
$300,000, to fund research studies that are not part of the Collaborative Agreement and are of
particular benefit to the County. Authorization will be limited to special studies that are related to
regulatory requirements and/or designed to obtain reasonable water quality standards.

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

The purposes of the recommended actions are to authorize the Chief Engineer of the Los Angeles
County Flood Control District (LACFCD) or her designee to enter into a Cooperative Agreement,
substantially similar to Enclosure A, to continue its participation in the Southern California
Stormwater Monitoring Coalition (SMC) and its Stormwater Research Needs Program through June
30, 2019, and approve associated annual contributions not to exceed $100,000; to authorize the
Chief Engineer of the LACFCD or her designee to enter into subsequent Research Implementation
Agreements by June 30, 2019, for a total amount not to exceed $300,000, with parties to the
aforementioned Cooperative Agreement, as well as other entities, to fund research studies that
cannot be accommodated by the annual contributions of the Cooperative Agreement; to authorize
the Director of Public Works or her designee to enter into Research Implementation Agreements by
June 30, 2019, on behalf of the County of Los Angeles, with parties to the aforementioned
Cooperative Agreement, as well as other entities, for a total amount not to exceed $300,000, to fund
research studies that are not part of the Collaborative Agreement and are of particular benefit to the
County; and to find that these actions are statutorily exempt from the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA). Participation will be limited to research projects or monitoring programs that are
regulatory requirements and/or designed to improve stormwater management or obtain reasonable
water quality standards.

On June 4, 2008, the Board authorized the LACFCD’s continued participation in the SMC and its
Stormwater Research Needs Program for a period of 5 years, which ended in 2013. On April 21,
2009, the Board authorized the Chief Engineer of the LACFCD to enter into an agreement with the
SMC member agencies to fund stormwater-related scientific studies during the aforementioned
period.
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The SMC and its Stormwater Research Needs Program seek to gather technical information and
develop tools necessary to effectively manage stormwater by coordinating the efforts of participating
agencies. During the previous 5-year agreement period, the LACFCD contributed approximately
$200,000, plus in-kind services, toward several stormwater-related research projects conducted by
the SMC. Those efforts have helped the LACFCD and the County comply with regulatory
requirements and enhanced the LACFCD’s and County’s overall scientific understanding of
stormwater management issues. Should the requested authorizations be approved, the LACFCD
and unincorporated communities of the County would continue to benefit from the SMC projects.

Formed in 2001, SMC is a collaboration of stormwater management and regulatory agencies in
Southern California with the goal of developing stormwater-related research projects. Parties to the
Collaborative Agreement include the LACFCD; the Counties of Orange and San Diego; the Ventura
County Watershed Protection District; the Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation
District; the San Bernardino County Flood Control District; the Cities of Long Beach, Los Angeles,
and San Diego; the California Department of Transportation; the Los Angeles Regional, Santa Ana
Regional, and San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Boards; the State Water Resources Control
Board; and the Southern California Coastal Water Research Project.

Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals

The Countywide Strategic Plan directs the provision of Operational Effectiveness/Fiscal
Sustainability (Goal 1). Participation in the SMC and funding of research studies by the SMC
supports the capacity to sustain essential services through proactive and prudent fiscal policies and
stewardship. This is accomplished by enhancing the LACFCD’s and the County’s ability to generate
scientific knowledge on stormwater and urban runoff management issues required for decision
making and policy formation through a cooperative partnership that allows the LACFCD and County
to effectively leverage the LACFCD’s and County’s resources using a collaborative effort.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

As shown in Exhibit A of Enclosure A, the LACFCD's estimated annual contribution for the period
ending in June 30, 2015, is $23,658.75. Funds to cover that annual contribution are available in the
LACFCD Fiscal Year 2014-15 Budget.

The LACFCD’s annual contribution during the remaining 4 years of the Cooperative Agreement (i.e.,
Fiscal Years 2015-16 through 2018-19) will vary from year to year depending on the number of SMC
projects in which the LACFCD agrees to participate. However, the annual contributions will not
exceed $100,000. In addition, the LACFCD'’s total contribution to fund the aforementioned
subsequent Research Implementation Agreements will not exceed $300,000. Thus, the total cost of
the LACFCD'’s contributions associated with the Cooperative Agreement and contributions
associated with the subsequent Research Implementation Agreements shall not exceed $700,000.
Funds sufficient to cover these contributions will be requested through the LACFCD’s annual budget
process for Fiscal Years 2015-16 through 2018-19.

The County’s contribution associated with the aforementioned subsequent Research Implementation
Agreements, in which the County agrees to participate, will not exceed $300,000. Funds sufficient to
cover these contributions will be requested through the annual budget process for the Public Works
General Fund under the Unincorporated Area Stormwater Program for Fiscal Years2015-16 through
2018-19.
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FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

This authorization will allow the Chief Engineer of the LACFCD or her designee to enter into a
Cooperative Agreement substantially similar to the Cooperative Agreement in Enclosure A. The
Cooperative Agreement in Enclosure A has been reviewed and approved as to form by County
Counsel. This authorization will also allow the Chief Engineer of the LACFCD or her designee and
the Director of Public Works or her designee to enter into subsequent Research Implementation
Agreements. Pursuant to the Board’s delegation of authority, subsequent Research Implementation
Agreements will be reviewed and approved as to form by County Counsel prior to execution.

ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION

The proposed activities are statutorily exempt from CEQA. The proposed agreements with the SMC
and associated funding for conducting stormwater-related scientific studies involve feasibility or
planning studies for possible future actions which have not been approved, adopted, or funded, and
therefore, are exempt under Section 15262 of the CEQA Guidelines. Further, the proposed activities
do not include the adoption of a plan that will have a legally binding effect on later activities. Public
Works will return to the Board for approval of any projects recommended as a result of the SMC
studies, along with the appropriate environmental documentation.

IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS)

Approval of the recommended actions will have no adverse impact on current LACFCD or County
services or projects.

CONCLUSION

Please return an adopted copy of this letter to the Department of Public Works, Watershed
Management Division.

Respectfully submitted,

GAIL FARBER
Director
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Enclosures

C. Chief Executive Office (Rita Robinson)
County Counsel
Executive Office































































































